
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF 
ROWAN COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

JANUARY 22, 1996 - 7:00 P.M. 
SETH MURDOCH AUDITORIUM, AGRICULTURE BUILDING 

 
 

PRESENT:  J. Newton Cohen, Chairman 
Jim Neely, Vice-Chairman 

Tom Webb, Member 
Todd Arey, Member 

Steve Blount, Member 
 

 The County Manager, Finance Director, County Attorney and Clerk to the 
Board were also present.  Chairman Cohen called the meeting to order and 
Commissioner Blount provided the invocation. 
 
ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA 
 
 *  Commissioner Webb stated that the Rowan Health Board had recently 
been named the outstanding Health Board in North Carolina by the Association of 
North Carolina Health Boards.  He distributed a copy of comments that were made 
during the award presentation, as attached to these minutes. 
 
 *  Commissioner Blount distributed an article concerning retail growth in the 
county and asked the Board to discuss its planning retreat.  Mr. Russell stated he 
had a proposal for the Board concerning the budget process for the year and 
recommended the Board hear department goals and requests before they have their 
planning retreat. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING:  FINANCING OF INDUSTRIAL PARK 
 
 Commissioner Webb moved to open the public hearing for comment on the 
proposed financing package for the Industrial Park.  Commissioner Blount seconded 
and the motion passed unanimously. 
 
 The following people addressed the Board: 
 



 2 

 Ed Hayden - expressed concerns that an excessive debt will affect the 
 interest rate the county obtains. 
 
 Don Hamilton - stated he felt the interest to be paid on the park will lead to a 
 tax increase and he was not in favor of a county industrial park of this size. 
 
 Don Menius - stated he lived on Ritchie Road and had concerns on the 
 entrance to the park coming from Ritchie Road and hoped it would be from 
 Julian Road instead.  Questioned what the cost of a county industrial park 
 would be versus a private park. 
 
 Wayne Upright - stated the Board should have asked the citizens input 
 before the Board closed on the properties. 
 
 Dave Rowland - expressed concerns that the county paid too much for the 
 land and in turn has driven the cost of the land up.  He also stated he felt the 
 county would be in competition with private developers. 
 
 Bill Godair - thanked the Board for bringing hope to young professionals and 
 added he felt the location of the park will make it a success. 
 
 There being no further comments Commissioner Neely moved to close the 
public hearing.  Commissioner Webb seconded and the motion passed unanimously.  
Commissioner Arey then moved to approve the financing package for the industrial 
park.  Commissioner Blount seconded and the motion passed unanimously. 
 
PARKS MASTER PLAN 
 
 Parks Director Jim Foltz and Parks Board Chairman Steve Brown introduced 
to the Board Mr. Gary Stewart from the Woolpert professional park planning firm.  
He stated their firm had completed a facilities need assessment for the parks and 
had developed a fifteen year plan.  He then reviewed their findings and some of the 
recommended acquisitions during the next fifteen years.  Commissioner Blount 
asked if there was any thought of the price for the site plan.  Mr. Foltz stated they 
could not give a price because the plans were staggered over fifteen years.  
Commissioner Blount asked if the proposed greenway would tie into the City of 
Salisbury’s greenway.  Mr. Foltz answered that it would.  The Board thanked Mr. 
Stewart for his presentation and agreed to take the material for future use.  
Commissioner Blount suggested forwarding copy of the plan to the strategic 
planning executive committee. 
 
REPORT FROM COMMUNITY SERVICE COUNCIL 
 
 Mr. George Knox, the county appointee to the Community Service Council, 
gave a report to the board on the activities of the council during the past year.  He 
highlighted the Home Management, Job Training, Community Service Block Grant 



 3 

and Head Start Programs.  The Board thanked Mr. Knox for his report as well as 
members of the council in attendance. 
 
REQUEST TO CLOSE ROAD 
 
 Attorney Ed Parrott presented the Board with a resolution to hold a public 
hearing in connection with a request to close a portion of an unnamed road. He 
stated the road existed on paper only and had never been used.  The road is located 
in the Litaker Township near Yates Road.  The request came from David Eugene 
Flowe and Judy Galloway Flowe.  Commissioner Blount asked if closing this road 
would delay future development of the other properties.  Mr. Parrott answered that 
all properties had road access from the main roads.  Commissioner Blount moved to 
hold a public hearing on February 19, 1996 at 7:15 p.m. and asked staff to 
investigate during this period.  Commissioner Webb seconded and the motion 
passed unanimously. 
 
REQUEST FOR THE SCHOOL OF ADVANCED TECHNOLOGY 
 
 Dr. Joe McCann presented a request to the Board to release $150,000 of 
special technology funds which were appropriated in the 1995-96 budget.  He stated 
the money would be used for computers for science classrooms.  Commissioner 
Blount thanked the school board for their request and moved to release the funds to 
the school board for the technology plan.  Commissioner Neely seconded and the 
motion passed by a unanimous vote.  Commissioner Neely asked the school board to 
follow up plans to seek funds for programs in all schools. 
 
REQUEST FROM TOWN OF SPENCER FOR ROAD PROJECT 
 
 Town Manager Jeff Causey and Mayor Buddy Gettys requested help from the 
Board for road improvements to Charles Street and North Rowan Avenue.  The 
improvements were necessary because of the construction of a new middle school 
and the traffic now using that area.  Mr. Causey explained that Spencer had 
appropriated $75,000 for the project and the project cost approximately $133,000.  
He stated they had used all of the money in their road maintenance fund as well as 
used money from their general fund and would not be able to make any other road 
improvements.  They asked the Board for any assistance they could provide.  
Commissioner Neely asked what the difference was between this road project and 
Kannapolis Country Estates.  Commissioner Webb answered that Kannapolis 
Country Estates was a private road maintained by the owners and this request was 
a public road maintained by Spencer.  Commissioner Webb moved to table the issue 
in order to obtain more information.  The Board agreed by consensus.  
Commissioner Blount suggested Spencer address the School Board because they 
may have funds since the improvements were for the middle school. 
 
 
 



 4 

FINAL ACCOUNTING REPORT FOR LEASE OF BASEBALL STADIUM 
 
 Mr. Russell reviewed with the Board an accounting of revenues coming to the 
county from Larry Hedrick and the Piedmont Phillies.  He reviewed four issues that 
were still unsettled with the owners: annual rent, concessions, accelerated 
construction costs, and team requested change orders.  He stated the owners 
wanted to compromise what they felt they owed to the County because they felt 
they did not have full use of the facilities for the entire season.  Mr. Russell stated 
the Sports Authority had attempted to settle these issues and as of that day had 
received approximately a 3/4 settlement for rent and concessions.  He asked the 
Boards direction on whether to accept the settlement for these two items or 
negotiate the four issues as a package as first requested by the owners.  
Commissioner Blount asked Mr. Holshouser if the owner could dictate which issues 
the money submitted settled.  Mr. Holshouser stated that if the money was 
submitted for a specific purpose then the Board was bound to settle the two issues 
named. 
 
 Commissioner Blount asked to enter closed session for the purpose of 
discussion of possible litigation.  Chairman Cohen stated he would like to open the 
floor for public comment before entering closed session.  Persons who addressed the 
Board were: 
 
 Don Hamilton - stated he felt the County had lost its revenue from parking. 
 
 Ed Hayden - Asked if construction of the road to the stadium had been 
 delayed.  Mr. Russell answered that it was not a matter of contention, but it 
 may be delayed a few weeks depending on the weather. 
 
 Dave Rowland - stated he had been against the ballpark from the beginning 
 and it should have been a private business venture. 
 
 There being no further public comment, Commissioner Neely moved to enter 
closed session in order to discuss possible litigation.  Commissioner Blount seconded 
and the motion passed unanimously. 
 
 Upon conclusion of closed session Commissioner Webb moved to return to 
open session.  Commissioner Neely seconded and the motion passed by a unanimous 
vote.   
 
 There being no further business before the Board, Commissioner Webb 
moved to adjourn the meeting.  Commissioner Blount seconded and the motion 
passed unanimously. 
 
     Respectfully Submitted, 
 
     Kelly Dickinson, Clerk to the Board 


